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PYC & ASSOCIATES {% ECOVIS’

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Shareholders
First Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of First Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited,
herein referred to os "Microfinance”, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as on
Ashadh 31, 2077, and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
Notes to the Financial Statements, including Significant Accounting Policies applied by the
Microfinance.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the
financial position of the microfinance as on Ashadh end 2077 and its financial performance, and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit on the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
microfinance in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAN's handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for apinian.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of financial statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our epinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other than the matter described in the Emphasis of Matter Matter Paragraph section, we have
determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Explanatory Note No. 4.36 and 4.41 of the financial statements, The staff
bonus and current tax expenses has been calculated on the basis of profit as appearing in the
financial statements prepared for regulatory purpose. Our opinian is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the presentation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable that preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Microfinance's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to EOINg concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Microfinance or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are respansible for overseeing the Microfinance's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with N5SA's will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or errer and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. Further responsibilities of the auditor have been
mentioned in Appendix-1.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

¢ We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, ta the best knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

* In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position as on Ashadh 31, 2077, and the Statemeni
of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial
Statements, including Significant Accounting Policies applied by the Microfinance have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in
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agreement with the book of accounts maintained by the Microfinance including relevant
records relating to preparation of the aforesaid financial statements have been kept s far as it
appears from our examination of those books and record of the Microfinance.

Based on our examination of the book of accounts, Microfinance has charged impairment
expense of NPR 3,431,856 and write back of NPR 3,074,200 for the repaorting period.
Microfinance has made adequate loan loss provision as per Directives issued by Nepal Rastra
microfinance for Microfinance Institutions,

As per Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank for Microfinance Institutions, Microfinance shall
have to utilize minimum 50% of previous year's allocated amount to Customer Protection
Fund. However, Microfinance has utilised only 40% of previous allocated amount of
NPR1,324,716.

As per point no. 6 of Circular no. 18, issued by Nepal Rastra Bank on 2076/12/16 and point no.
54(6) of Monetary Policy 2077/78, if repayment of loan instalment is made on the month of
Chaitra, Microfinance shall provide 10% rebate on interest amount. Microfinance has not
complied with this direction.

We have issued another audit opinion in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing 200,
“Special Considerations- Audit of Financial Statements Prepared In Accordance With Special
Purpose Frameworks” reporting on the financial statements prepared in aceordance with the
direction issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

Te the best of our information and according to explanation given to us and so far appeared
from our examination of the books of account of the Microfinance, we have not come across
cases where Board of Directors or any employees of the Microfinance have acted contrary to
the provisions of law relating to the accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused
loss or damage to the microfinance and violated any directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted
in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the Microfinance, its depositors and
investors.

The operation of Microfinance is within its jurisdiction.

CA. Shikha Bagla
Partner
PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Appendix- 1

As @ part of audit in accordance of NSAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintaif
professional skepticism throughout the audit of First Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sansthan
Limited for FY 2076-77. We also:

* |dentified and assessed the risk of material misstaternent of the financial statement whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risks, and
obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide an opinion. The risk of
not detecting an material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from
error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentation, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

= Concluded an appropriateness of management use of going concern basis of accounting and,
based in audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
condition that may cast significant doubt on the microfinance ability to continue as going
concern. If we concluded that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Microfinance to cease ta continue as going concern.

* Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used as the reasonahleness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢  Evaluated the overall presentation, structure, and content of financial statement including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statement represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* DObtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities to express an opinion on the financial statements. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

* We communicated with those charges with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

* We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matter that may reasonably be though to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related standards,

Page 4 of4
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 31st Ashadh 2077

31 Ashad 2077

31 Ashad 2076

Particulars Notes NPR NPR
Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 41 355,553,743 168,087,153
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 28,549,434 26,549,434
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions 4.3 350,000,000 350,000,000
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 45 - -
Loans & Advances to B/Fls 4.6 - -
Loans and advances to Customers 4.7 5,562,621,922 5,547,208,116
Investment in Securities 4.8 2,000,000 2,000,000
Current Tax Assets 4.9 1,704,668 99,171
Investment in Subsidaries 4.10 - -
Investment in Associates 4.1 - -
Investment Property 412 - -
Property and Equipment 413 8,887,024 10,863,203
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 332,699 445,060
Deferred tax assets 4.15 - -
Other assets 4.16 23,067,649 26,583,251
Total Assets 6,332,717,139 6,131,835,388
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.19 - -
Deposit from Customers 4.20 - -
Borrowings 4.21 5,234,999,983 5,144,133,847
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provision 4.22 - -
Deferred tax Liabilities 4.15 3,157,536 9,614,371
Other liabilities 4.23 43,507,910 60,782,646
Debt Securities Issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total Liabilities 5,281,665,429 5,214,530,864
Equity
Share capital 4.26 800,740,746 684,393,800
Share Premium - 23,362,127
Retained Earnings 121,636,917 110,317,145
Reserves 4.27 128,674,047 99,231,452
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 1,051,051,710 917,304,524
Non-controlling interests - -
Total Equity 1,051,051,710 917,304,524
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,332,717,139 6,131,835,388
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.28
Net Assets Value Per Share 131.26 134.03

As per our Report of Even Date
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

Surendra Raj Regmi Bibek Man Singh Shakya Umesh Katuwal C.A. Shikha Bagla
Chairman Director Director Partner
Representative of Global IME Bank Ltd. Representative of Kumari Bank Ltd. For PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Yubraj Chetri Bamdev Gauli Rita Dikshit Gyanendra Iwahang Danaraj Panta Bijay Sharma
Director Director Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Finance Head

Date: 2077/05/10
Place: Kathmandu
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the period from 1st Sharwan 2076 - 31st Ashadh 2077

Particulars Notes 2(:47:; L 20;;;'6

Interest Income 4.29 773,261,231 727,381,969
Interest Expense 4.30 (524,823,613) (465,542,696)
Net interest income 248,437,618 261,839,273
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 515,436 1,110,390
Fees and Commission Expenses 4.32 - -
Net Fee and Commission Income 515,436 1,110,390
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 248,953,054 262,949,663
Net Trading Income 4.33 - -
Other Operating Income 4.34 - -
Total Operating Income 248,953,054 262,949,663
Impairment Charge/(reversal) for Loans and other losses 4.35 (357,656) (13,847,777)
Net Operating income 248,595,398 249,101,886
Operating Expenses (55,251,601) (53,261,252)
Personnel Expenses 4.36 (42,876,760) (40,090,522)
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 (10,351,929) (11,414,515)
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38 (2,022,912) (1,756,215)
Operating Profit 193,343,797 195,840,634
Non Operating Income 4.39 275,740 -
Non Operating Expenses 4.40 - -
Profit before Income Tax 193,619,537 195,840,634
Income Tax Expenses 4.41 -
Current Tax (59,894,503) (57,322,246)
Deferred Tax Expenses (Income) 6,456,835 (7,764,616)
Profit for the Period 140,181,869 130,753,772
Profit attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Bank 140,181,869 130,753,772
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit for the year 140,181,869 130,753,772
Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per ordinary share (NPR) (Initially Reported) 18.16 19.11
Diluted earnings per ordinary share (NPR)(Initially Reported) 18.16 19.11
Earning per share (NPR) (Restated) 17.74 16.33
Diluted Earning per Share (NPR) (Restated) 17.74 16.33

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

Surendra Raj Regmi Bibek Man Singh Shakya
Chairman Director
Representative of Global IME Bank Ltd. Representative of Kumari Bank Ltd.
Yubraj Chetri Bamdev Gauli Rita Dikshit Gyanendra lwahang
Director Director Director Director

Date: 2077/05/10
Place: Kathmandu

As per our Report of Even Date

Umesh Katuwal
Director

Danaraj Panta

Acting Chief Executive Officer

C.A. Shikha Bagla

Partner

For PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Bijay Sharma
Finance Head

Gd




W

. First
Microfinance

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the period from 1st Sharwan 2076 - 31st Ahsadh 2077

th
11ANNUAL REPORT

———————————— 2020
vaR} aiftfe ufddcer-2006

2076-77

2075-76

Particulars Notes

NPR

NPR

Profit for the year

140,181,869

130,753,772

Other comprehensive income , net of Income Tax
Fair Value Reserve (Investment in Equity Instruments)
Net Changes in Fair Value

Net Amount Transferred to Profit or Loss

Net Gains (Loss) on Revaluations

Cash Flow Hedges:

Effective portion of changes in Fair Value

Net Amount reclassified to profit or loss

Net Actuarial Gains/Loss on Defined Benefits Plans
Income Tax Relating to all components of other
comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
taxation

(1,227,798)
368,339

Total comprehensive income for the year

140,181,869

129,894,313

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity Holders of the microfinance
Non-controlling interests

140,181,869

129,894,313

Total Comprehensive Income For the Period

140,181,869

129,894,313

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

Bibek Man Singh Shakya
Director
Representative of Kumari Bank Ltd.

Surendra Raj Regmi
Chairman
Representative of Global IME Bank Ltd.

Yubraj Chetri
Director

Rita Dikshit
Director

Bamdev Gauli Gyanendra lwahang

Director Director

Date: 2077/05/10
Place: Kathmandu

As per our Report of Even Date

Umesh Katuwal

C.A. Shikha Bagla

Director Partner
For PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Danaraj Panta Bijay Sharma

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Finance Head
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the period from 1st Sharwan 2076 - 31st Ashadh 2077

Commission and Fees Paid

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
NPR NPR

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest Received 773,261,231 727,381,969
Fees and Other Income Received 515,436 1,110,390
Dividend Received - -
Receipts from Other Operating Activities - -
Interest Paid (528,693,971) (465,542,696)

Cash Payment to Employees

(41,051,344)

(29,850,836)

Other Expenses Paid

(10,565,944)

5,576,168

Operating Cash Flows before changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

193,465,408

238,674,995

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan and advance to customers

(29,978,482)

(1,411,018,066)

Other assets

(4,884,642)

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Liabilities

(642,122)

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

90,866,136

1,278,403,164

Other liabilities

3,037,805

(4,486,598)

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

256,748,754

96,688,853

Income taxes paid

(61,500,000)

(57,421,417)

Net cash from operating activities

195,248,745

39,267,436

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from Sales of Investment Securities

Increase in Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

341,368

(6,102,211)

Receipt from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from sale of Intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from sale of Investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

(6,102,211)

Receipt form issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordianted liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends Paid

(6,123,523)

(86,449,743)

Interest Paid

Other Receipt/Payments (Share Premium)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

(6,123,523)

(86,449,743)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

189,466,591

(53,284,518)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

194,636,587

247,921,105

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

384,103,177

194,636,587

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

Surendra Raj Regmi
Chairman
Representative of Global IME Bank Ltd.

Bibek Man Singh Shakya
Director
Representative of Kumari Bank Ltd.

Rita Dikshit
Director

Bamdev Gauli
Director

Yubraj Chetri
Director

Gyanendra Iwahang
Director

Date: 2077/05/10
Place: Kathmandu

As per our Report of Even Date

Umesh Katuwal

Acting Chief Executive Officer

C.A. Shikha Bagla

Director Partner
For PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Danaraj Panta Bijay Sharma

Finance Head
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh 2077 (15th July, 2020)

REPORTING ENTITY

First Microfinance Laghu Bitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (First Microfinance/ Microfinance) was
registered at Office of Company Registrar as Public Limited Company on 2066/6/26 with registration
number of 1181/066/067. First Microfinance Laghu Bitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (First Microfinance)
or “the Micro Finance”) was promoted by Global IME Bank Limited, Prabhu Bank Limited, Kumari
Bank Limited, ICFC Finance Limited and some other reputed personalities of Nepal. The Micro
Finance is operating its business from its corporate office at Gyaneshor-30, Kathmandu.

It had obtained license to carry on business of wholesale lending of micro credit in Nepal under
the license No. “GHA”/17/066/067 dated 2066/9/13 from Nepal Rastra Bank as Class 'D' Licensed
Institution and itcommenced its transactions since 2066/09/24. The main objective of First Microfinance
is to provide wholesale lending to other licensed micro finance institutions and cooperatives societies
to promote the life style of deprived people as describe by Nepal Rastra Bank.

First Microfinance Laghu Bitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is
trading under the code “FMDBL”. As per section 32(5) of Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073,
D class financial institutions is required to use in its name “Laghu Bitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited”.
So according the name of the Micro Finance has been changed to First Microfinance Laghu Bitta
Bittiya Sanstha Limited from First Microfinance Development Bank Ltd.

Authorized capital and Issued Capital of the First Microfinance is Rs. 800,740,746 shares of Rs.
100 each) and Paid-up capital is also Rs. 800,740,746 (shares of Rs.100 each). The shareholder
composition of the microfinance (as of 2077-03-31) is as follows.

Share capital Authorized Capital

1. Promoter Ownership 51%
"A" class Licensed Institution 25%

Other Licensed Institution 4%

Other institutions 1%
General 21%

2. General Public Ownership 49%
Total 100%

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless specified.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss
and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown in two separate statement, the Statement
of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts. The significant
accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below in point
number 3. These policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes
in accounting policies disclosed specifically.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) — Nepal. The financial
statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

The First Microfinance has adopted relevant NFRS and descriptions of the effect of the transition
have been summarized in the Notes that follow. The First Microfinance presents its statement of
financial position broadly in order of liquidity, an analysis regarding recovery or settlement within
twelve months after the reporting date (current) and more than twelve months after the reporting
date (non-current) is presented in the respective notes.
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2.5

Reporting Period and Approval of financial statements

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of
Ashadh (mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar.

The current year period refers to 1st Shrawan 2076 to 31st Ashadh 2077 as per Nepalese Calendar
corresponding to 17th July 2019 to 15th July 2020 as per English Calendar and corresponding
previous year period is 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Ashadh 2076 as per Nepalese Calendar
corresponding to 17th July 2018 to 16th July 2019 as per English Calendar.

Nepalese Calendar English Calendar

Current Year 2076/77 2019/20
Previous Year 2075/76 2018/19

1st Shrawan 2076 17th July 2019
Current Year Period to to

31st Ashadh 2077 15th July 2020

1st Shrawan 2075 17th July 2018
Previous Year Period to to

31st Ashadh 2076 16th July 2019

Accompanied financial statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its meeting
held on 10th Bhadra, 2077 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting. The First Microfinance prepared its financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest
Rupee unless otherwise stated), which is the company’s functional currency. The First Microfinance
determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements are measured
using that functional currency.

Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the First Microfinance’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis.

Information about assumptions, estimates and judgement used in preparation of financial
statements for 2076/77 that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the
next financial year are:

Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

Determination of net realizable value.

Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment.

Assessment of the First Microfinance’s ability to continue as going concern.

Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property and equipment.

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.

Changes in Accounting policies

The First Microfinance has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in
these financial statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations implemented
during the year. The nature and effect of new standards and interpretations are discussed in note
that follows.

6Q




W

. First
Microfinance

th
T annuae reporr
——— |1 |

vaR! aiftie ufdager-2000

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9
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3.1

New reporting standards in issue but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations
have been issued by IASB- after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The standards
and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the First
Microfinance’s financial statements are disclosed below. The First Microfinance intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

NFRS 9 Financial Instrument has been issued but is not effective until current period. For the
reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures
have been applied.

A significant impact on classification and measurement including impairment of financial
instruments, will arise as a result of application of IFRS 9.

Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current where the impact of the
discounting is material.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss, unless
required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations
Committee (SIC)) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the First
Microfinance.

Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. ltems of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by
the Nepal Accounting Standard — NAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures
the understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the First Microfinance.
Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material
information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different natures
or functions.

Limitation of NFRS implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied by the First Microfinance in the preparation of these
financial statements are presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless stated otherwise.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the required material
items in the statement of financial position where it has been disclosed as measured at fair value
or otherwise.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the First Microfinance. Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized
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3.3

prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in notes that follow.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent
represent the amount of cash in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money
at short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from
the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by
the First Microfinance in the management of short term commitment.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

The First Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement
of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The First Microfinance initially recognize loans and advances and debt securities/
subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date that the First
Microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity
instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse
repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the First Microfinance commits
to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are
recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at their cost
value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification.

Classification

i. Financial Assets
The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost
or fair value on the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of
financial assets are as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and
b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.

Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or
loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in
fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition,
the Microfinance makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair
value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified
as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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ii. Financial Liabilities
The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss
b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Measurement
Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Microfinance can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by

instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income

pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment

is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently,

they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The cumulative gain

or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the Microfinance’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other income’
line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Microfinance irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL

upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise;
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e the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about
the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are
reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in
the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or where the Micro Finance has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the Micro
Finance has retained control, the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the Micro
Finance’s continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. A financial liability is extinguished
when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price)
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or,
in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the First Microfinance has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs
are not based on observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Microfinance
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value
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is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01
valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets (Level
02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that
difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction
is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair
value is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the
loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by
the First Microfinance on terms that the First Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications
that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security,
or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in
the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in
its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the First Microfinance considers to restructure loans.
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. Once
the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR method and the loan
is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that
all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to
an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized
cost at both specific asset and collective level. The First Microfinance first assesses individually
whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant
and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

All individually significant loans and advances; measured at amortized cost found not to be
specifically impaired and those that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together loans and advances with similar risk characteristics.

All individually significant loans and advances are assessed for specific impairment. Those found
not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances with similar risk characteristics.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of
portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment, the Microfinance uses historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates,
loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.
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Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Microfinance.
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later
recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘Other operating income’.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value though other
comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying the
losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any
principal repayment and the current fair value, less any impairment loss recognized previously in
profit or loss.

Property and Equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement
Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the assets will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
The cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:
e Cost of materials and direct labour;
e Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their

intended use; and

e Capitalized borrowing cost

b) Depreciation-Rate applied is charged as per NAS-16
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use,
on straight line method over estimated useful lives as determined by the Management.
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier
of the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.
For assets purchased/sold during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of use on
pro-rata basis.

Assets Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Motor Car 8 Years 12.5%
Motor Bike 7 Years 14.3%
Furniture and Fixtures 9 Years 11.11%
Hording Board 2 Years 50%
Computers and Office 5 Years 20%
Equipment
Air Conditioner 10 Years 10%
Leasehold improvements Life of the Lease Period

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to
be in use is considered not material.

At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that
an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset
is written down immediately to the recoverable amount.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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3.6

Goodwill Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or
at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is made on a prospective basis.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted
for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as intangible assets based on
materiality, accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period
longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and comparative
periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Computer software 5 years 20%
Income Tax

The Microfinance is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income taxes have been calculated as per the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax
assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in
respect of previous periods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Bank as at the
reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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3.7

3.8

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged
directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with the
deferred gain or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

e a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the entity; or

e present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

- ltis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; or
- The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments- Where the Micro Finance has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer
or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable
or not and the Micro Finance has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are
included in these financial statements as commitments.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Microfinance from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission. Revenue is recognized to the
extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Microfinance and the revenue can
be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of
income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as below:

Interest income

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest method. Effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through
the expected life of financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. The
calculation of effective interest rate includes all transactions cost and fee and commission paid
or received that are integral part of the effective interest rate. The transaction costs include
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3.9

3.10

incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets.

Interest income presented in statement of profit or loss includes Interest income on financial assets
measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate method considering the cash
flow throughout the period of respective loan investment. These financial assets include loans and
advances including staff loans.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are
included in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including
management fee, prepayment Charge, penal Charges etc .

Where the estimates of cash flows have been revised, the carrying amount of the financial asset
or liability is adjusted to reflect the actual and revised cash flows, discounted at the instrument’s
original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognised as interest income or expense in the
period in which the revision is made.

If the financial asset has been reclassified, subsequent increases in the estimates of future cash
receipts as a result of increased recoverability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate from the date of the change in estimate.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for- sale financial assets are
recognised directly in profit or loss unless a irrevocable selection is done to charge it through Other
Comprehensive Income. Once such selection is done the changes in fair value is also charged
through Other Comprehensive Income unless the assets is derecognized. The gain or loss on
disposal of available for sale financial assets is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Dividends on equity instruments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss within other
income when the Micro Finance’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest expense

Interest expense including all other fees and service charge on all financial liabilities are recognized
in profit or loss.. The interest expenses so recognised closely approximates the interest expenses
that would have been derived under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered
material. The Micro Finance considers the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method
exceeds the benefit that would be derived from such compliance.

Employees Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act to pay the amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably
under short term employee benefits.
Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period):
e wages, salaries and social security contributions;
e paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
e profit-sharing and bonuses; and
e non-monetary benefits

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
a fixed contribution to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
future amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized
as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are
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rendered by employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent
that cash refund or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined
contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employee render the service are discounted at their present value. The following is the
defined contribution plan provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits
under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the
Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary
plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits
other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity
For defined benefit plans, the liability recognised in the statement of financial position is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets. Such
obligations are estimated on the basis of actuarial Valuation for the liability before 19th of
Bhadra 2074.
New Labour Act, 2074 came in force after 19th of Bhadra 2074 which requires to provide
minimum of 8.33% of basis salary plus grades as gratuity every month. Although the
employee byelaws of the micro finance has not be revised and no decision regarding it
have been taken, provision has been made at 8.33% of basis salary plus grades of all staff
subsequent to that date treating it as defined contribution plan as the Labour Act, 2074 has
set this a minimum standard.

Leave Benefit

The Micro Finance provides accumulated leave benefit under its staff byelaws.
Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term benefit liability. Long term benefit
liability are not subject to same degree of uncertainty as defined benefit plan. Therefore
cumulative liability is provided as on Ashad end 2077.

The Micro Finance has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

3.11 Share Capital and Reserve

The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in
accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as
residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are
classified as equity of the Microfinance and distributions thereon are presented in statement of
changes in equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments.
The reserves include regulatory and other reserves excluding retained earnings.

3.12 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to
the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which
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could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net
profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to
be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore
diluted EPS has not been computed and disclosed.

Segment reporting

The Micro Finance is organized for management and reporting purposes into segments such
as: ‘D’ class Microfinance and Co-operative. The products offered to these client segments are
summarized under ‘Income by product’ below. The focus is on broadening and deepening the
relationship with clients, rather than maximizing a particular product line.

Segment Description: the Micro Finance has disclosed its operations under the following segments:

Segment Definition Activity

‘D’ class Microfinance ‘D’ Class Microfinance makes loans and advance to such microfinance
who has obtained licensed from Nepal Rastra Bank as ‘D’ Class Micro
finance Institutions and those ‘D’ class micro finance institutions further
makes loans and advances to deprived people.

Co-operative Co-operative makes loans and advances to such Community
base co-operative which has been registered at division co-operative
office and operated as per cooperative act. Further Co-operatives
makes loans and advances to deprived local community.
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4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

EXPLANATORY NOTES

The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent
represent the amount of cash in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money
at short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from
the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by
the Microfinance in the management of short term commitment.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Cash in Hand - -
Balance with B/Fls 39,963,049 67,285,243
Money at Call and Short Notices 315,590,694 100,801,910
Others
Total 355,553,743 168,087,153

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve has been presented
under this account head.

Balance with the central bank is principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio
required by the central bank. There are regulatory and liquidity restrictions placed on the level of
the balance with the central bank.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Statutory Balances with NRB 28,549,434 26,549,434
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement - -

Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -
Total 28,549,434 26,549,434

Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions

The fair value of placement with the Bank and Financial Institutions is the amortized cost discounted
using the effective interest rate which equivalent to interest rate in which the instrument has been placed.

There were placements with Bank & Financial Institution as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Placement with domestic B/Fls 350,000,000 350,000,000
Less: Allowance for Impairment - -
Total 350,000,000 350,000,000

Derivative Financial Instruments
NIL

Other Trading Assets

NIL

Loan and advances to B/Fls

NIL
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4.7

Loan and Advances to Customers

Loan and advances given to Co-operative and as well as other Microfinance etc. is shown at
amortized cost and discounted using effective interest rate less the amount of impairment

allowances.

Loan to employee provided according to the Microfinance’s Home loan Guideline, 2073 also
presented under this head. The staff loans have been discounted at interest rate of 10% and loans

portion disclosed under loans and advances to customers.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Loans and Advances Measured at amortized 5,576,827,355 5,561,055,893
Less:  Impairment Allowance (14,205,433) (13,847,777)
Individual Impairment - -
Portfolio Impairment 14,205,433 13,847,777
Loans and advances to customers net of impairments 5,562,621,922 5,547,208,116

4.7.1 Current and Non-current portion of Loans and advances to customers
Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Current 3,032,865,000 4,210,058,902
Non-Current 2,529,756,922 1,337,149,214
Total 5,562,621,922 5,547,208,116

4.7.2

Analysis of Loans and Advances- By Product

Particulars

31-3-2077

31-3-2076

Agricultural Loan
Term Loan
Working Capital Loan

2,533,556,990
3,032,865,000

2,895,443,508
2,641,000,000

Gross Loan 5,566,421,990 5,536,443,508
Staff Loan 10,405,365 24,612,385
Grand Total 5,576,827,355 5,561,055,893
Less: Impairment Allowance 14,205,433 13,847,777
Individual Impairment - -
Collective Impairment (14,205,433) (13,847,777)

Net Loan

5,562,621,922

5,547,208,116

4.7.3 Segments of loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers have been further sub classified into two business
segments, namely “D” Class Micro Finance ii) Credit Cooperative (Details Given in Segment
Reporting under “Disclosures and Additional Information 5.7).

“Collateral securities against loans and advances to customers”

Loans and advances to Institutional customers is given against the corporate guarantee
while loans and advances to staff are given against the security of life insurance policy and
collateral securities.

4.7.4 Allowance for Impairment
At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when
objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the
asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.
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The Microfinance deals with wholesale lending to corporates that includes D class Micro
Finance Institutions and Co-operatives.

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortised cost
is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39:
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, to determine the amount of any
impairment loss.

Impairment loss on Loan and Advances has been determined based on current period’s
loan disbursement using direction issued by the NRB.

Loan Loss Provision:
(Amount in NPR)

Particulars LLP as per NRB Impairment as
directive per NRFS
Up to Previous Year 55,629,681 13,847,777
Add: Current Year 3,431,856 3,431,856
Less: Write Back 3,074,200 3,074,200
Total (Up to This year) 55,987,337 14,205,433

Investments in securities

Investments made by the Microfinance has been presented under this account head in three
categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment
securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Investment securities designated as at FVTPL - -

Investment securities measured at amortized cost - -
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI (AFS) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total 2,000,000 2,000,000

Investments in Nepal Finsoft Company Limited

This investment has been made as a strategic investment to support the Micro Finance’s
operational requirement. Similar investment in Nepal Finsoft has been made by other Micro
Finance Institutions. This investment is not actively traded in the market and are therefore is not
liquid. The Micro Finance has no intention to dispose these investments in foreseeable future. The
Micro Finance considers that the cash flows that the Micro Finance expects to receive in future
exceeds the carrying value of the investments. This investment have been carried at cost as the
level 3 valuation is nearer to book value.
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4.9 Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

This includes advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income tax liabilities or
other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
Ashad 2077 Ashad 2076

Current Tax Assets
Current Year Income Tax Assets 61,599,171 57,421,417
Tax Assets of Prior Periods - -
Total 61,599,171 57,421,417
Current tax Liabilities
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities 59,894,503 57,322,246
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods - -
Total 59,894,503 57,322,246

Net Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) 1,704,668 99,171

4.10 Investment in Subsidiaries
NIL

4.11 Investment in Associates
NIL

4.12 Investment Properties
NIL
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Property and Equipment
(Amount in NPR)
_n Land & . Leasehold |  Office . Total 31| Total 31
Description Building Machinery feeee B Vehicles Ashad Ashad
2077 2076
Original Cost (Rs.)
As at 32 Ashad 2075 -| 3,762,085 533,375| 1,628,681| 7,747,000 | 13,671,141 | 12,916,588
Additions -1 318,479 87,575 76,983 | 5,619,174 | 6,102,211 | 1,149,088
Capitalization - - - - - - -
Acquisitions -| 318,479 87,575 76,983 | 5,619,174 | 6,102,211 | 1,149,088
Disposal During the Year - - - - - - (367,130)
Adjustment /Revaluations - - - - - -1 (27,405)
As at 31 Ashad 2076 -| 4,080,564 620,950 | 1,705,664 | 13,366,174 | 19,773,352 | 13,671,141
Additions -| 600,120 - 27,500 -| 627,620 6,102,211
Capitalization - - - - - - -
Acquisition -| 600,120 - 27,500 -|  627,620| 6,102,211
Disposal During the Year -| (507,232) - (42,545) | (3,385,000) | (3,934,777) -
Adjustment /Revaluations - - - - - - -
As at 31 Ashad 2077 -| 4,173,452 620,950 | 1,690,619 | 9,981,174 | 16,466,195 | 19,773,352
Depreciation and
Impairment
As at 32 Ashad 2075 -| 2,335,355 133,421| 1,146,426 | 3,651,091| 7,266,293 | 6,243,720
Depreciation for the year -| 437,483 78,308 96,355| 1,031,708 | 1,643,854 | 1,417,110
Impairment for the year - - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - - (394,535)
As on 31 Ashad 2076 -| 2,772,838 211,729 | 1,242,781 | 4,682,799 | 8,910,147 | 72,66,295
Depreciation for the year -| 434,548 78,308 117,984 | 1,279,711| 1,910,551 | 1,643,854
Impairment for the year - - - - - - -
Disposal -| (507,232) - (42,544) | (2,691,751) | (3,241,527) -
Adjustment - - - - - - -
As on 31 Ashad 2077 -| 2,700,154 290,037 | 1,318,221| 3,270,759 | 7,579,171 8,910,149
Capital WIP - - - - - - -
Net Book Value - - - - - - -
As on Ashad End 2075 -| 1,426,730 399,954 482,255 | 4,095,909 | 6,404,848 | 6,672,868
As on Ashad End 2076 -| 1,307,726 409,221 462,883 | 8,683,375 | 10,863,205 | 6,404,846
As on Ashad End 2077 -| 1,473,298 330,913 372,398 | 6,710,415| 8,887,024 |10,863,203
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4.14 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally generated etc

has been presented under this account head.

Software | Software TOTAL TOTAL
Description Goodwill Sreeerd | Dol 31st Ashad| 31 Ashad
2077 2076
Original Cost (Rs.)
As at 32 Ashad 2075 - 844,306 844,306 282,500
Additions - - - - -
Acquisition - - - - 561,806
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal During the Year - - - - -
Adjustment /Revaluations - - - - -
As at 31 Ashad 2076 - 844,306 - 844,306 844,306
Additions - - - - -
Acquisition - - - - -
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal During the Year - - - - -
Adjustment /Revaluations - - - - -
As at 31 Ashad 2077 - 844,306 - 844,306 844,306
Depreciation and Impairment - - - - -
As at 32 Ashad 2075 - 286,885 286,885 282,500
Depreciation for the year - 112,361 112,361 4,385
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Disposal - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
As at 31 Ashad 2076 - 399,246 - 399,246 286,885
Depreciation for the year - 1,12,361 - 112,361 112,361
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Disposal - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As at 31 Ashad 2077 - 511,607 - 511,607 399,246
Captial WIP - - - - -
Net Book Value - - - - -
As on Ashad End 2075 - 557,421 - 557,421 -
As on Ashad End 2076 - 445,060 - 445,060 557,421
As on Ashad End 2077 - 332,699 - 332,699 445,060

4.15 Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward
of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. has been presented under this account head.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars i?::;:? Tax Base Temgi:frary

Property, Plant & Equipment 9,219,723 8,918,609 301,114
Loans and Advances 5,662,621,922 | 5,542,746,274 19,875,648
Leave Liability 3,834,186 - (3,834,186)
Gratuity Liability 4,224,956 - (4,224,956)
Lease Liability 1,592,499 - (1,592,499)
Total 10,525,121
Tax Rate @ 30%

Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) - 31-03-2077 3,157,536
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) - 2076-77 (6,456,835)
Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) - 31-03-2076 9,614,371
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4.16 Other Assets
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4.18

419

4.20

4.21

The other assets that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortised
costs and those other assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These
instruments are regularly monitored for impairment
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(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Other Financial Assets
Accrued interest on loans - -
Accrued interest on Bank Balance - -
Staff advances - -
Sundry debtors 5,057,480 4,290,482

Total 5,057,480 4,290,482
Other Non-Financial Assets - -
Deferred Staff loan (unwinding loan) 17,224,635 21,382,358
Stationary Stock 101,068 84,324
Sundry debtors - -
Pre payments 684,466 826,087

Total 18,010,169 22,292,769

Gross 23,067,649 26,583,251

4.16.1 Current and Non-current portions of Other Assets

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Non-Current 17,224,635 21,382,358
Current 5,843,014 5,200,893
Total 23,067,649 26,583,251

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks and
financial institution has been presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit,
balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial
institution has also been presented under this account head. There is no any amount due to Banks
and Financial Institutions.

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount payable
to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort,
sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc. There is no any amount due to Nepal
Rastra Bank.

Derivative financial instruments

There was no liability in derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year.
Deposits from Customers

There is no any deposit by customer in Microfinance.

Borrowings

Borrowings relates to long term and short term borrowing availed from various domestic banks and
financial institutions.
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The fair value of borrowings with a residual maturity of less than one year generally approximates
the carrying value. The estimated fair value of borrowings with a residual maturity of more than
one year represents the discounted amount of future cash flows expected to be paid, including
assumptions relating to prepayment rates and, where appropriate, credit spreads. Expected cash
outflows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. The rates for discounting
for the purpose of fair value measurement closely approximates the effective interest rate inherent
in the instruments therefore the carrying value represents the fair value.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars

31-3-2077

31-3-2076

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

5,234,999,983

5,144,133,847

Other - -
Subtotal 5,234,999,983 5,144,133,847
Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -

Multilateral Development Banks - -
Subtotal - -

Total 5,234,999,983 5,144,133,847
4.21.1 Current and Not-current portions of Borrowings
(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Current 4,563,910,583 4,114,178,408
Non-Current 671,089,400 1,029,955,439
Total 5,234,999,983 5,144,133,847
Provision
NIL

Other Liabilities

Non-financial liabilities are recorded and reported at cost based on legal and constructive obligation

to the Micro Finance.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Liability for employees Gratuity 4,224,956 3,639,461
Liability for long - service leave 3,834,186 3,338,921
Short Term Employee Benefits - 390,560
Bills Payable - -
Creditors & Accruals 2,936,018 762,794
Interest payable on Deposits - -
Interest payable on borrowings 2,851,444 6,721,802
Liabilities on Deferred Grant Income - -
Unpaid Dividend 5,165,869 4,329,561
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -
Employee Bonus Payable 22,132,509 20,997,293
Lease Payable 1,592,499 1,806,514
Deferred Income on Insured Staff loan - 18,053,584
Audit Fee Payable 334,500 334,500
Other Payables 435,929 407,656

Total 43,507,910 60,782,646
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4.23.1 Current and Non-current Portions of Other Liabilities
(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Current 33,856,269 4,210,058,902
Non-Current 9,651,641 1,337,149,214
Total 43,507,910 5,547,208,116
4.23.2 Defined benefit obligation
The Microfinance has accounted for gratuity and leave benefits under define benefit
obligation.
4.23.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Defined benefit obligation at Upto Bhadra 18 2074
(From Actuary Valugtion Repoft of 2075-76) 2,559,239 2,559,239
Contribution after Bhadra 18 2074:
Up to Previous Year 1,080,221 477,791
Current Year 585,496 602,430
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 4,224,956 3,639,460

Defined Benefit Obligation has not calculated by Actuary for current reporting period.

4.23.4 Leave Benefit Liabilities

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Opening Liability 3,338,921 2,639,801
Interest Cost - -
Current Service cost 1,807,862 1,284,952
Less: Leave Paid during the year (1,312,597) (585,832)
Actuarial Gain or Loss - -
Closing Liability 3,834,186 33,38,921

4.24 Debt securities issued

No debt securities have been issued by the Microfinance.

4.25 Subordinated Liabilities

No Subordinated Liabilities has been issued by the Microfinance.

4.26 Share Capital

The Microfinance’s registered capital structure is as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Particulars
No. of Share Amount No. of Share Amount
Authorized capital
(shares of Rs. 100 each) 8,007,407 | 8,007,40,746 6,843,938 684,393,800
Issued capital
(shares of Rs. 100 each) 8,007,407 800,740,746 6,843,938 684,393,800
Paid up capital
(shares of Rs. 100 each) 8,007,407 800,740,746 6,843,938 684,393,800
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4.26.1 Share Ownership Detail
The shareholding pattern of the microfinance is as follows:

Shareholder Category %3;12?;19 %3;f::1:fd7iig
Promotors 51% 51%
"A" Class Institution 25% 22%
Other Licensed Institution 4% 7%
Organized Entities 1% 1%
Individuals 21% 21%
Public 49% 49%
Total 100% 100%

4.26.2 Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares capital

Shareholder Name 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
% of holding % of holding

Prabhu Bank Limited 15.00% 15.00%
Global IME Bank Limited 14.73% 15.00%
Kumari Bank Limited 4.05% 4.05%
ICFC Finance Limited 3.64% 3.64%
Raj Kumar Rai 2.19% 2.19%
Krishna Kumar Bhattarai 1.99% 2.19%
Madhu Sudan Raj Dahal 1.94% 1.99%
Numanath Poudel 1.78% 1.78%
Poshak Raj Paudel 1.04% 1.04%
Govind Lal Sanghai 0.94% 0.94%
Bimala Rai 0.88% 0.88%
Gauri Shrestha 0.87% 0.77%
Samiran Rai 0.78% 0.78%
Mira Pandey 0.75% 0.75%
Suraj Adhikari 0.75% 0.73%
Umesh Katuwal 0.73% 0.73%
Anil Kumar Dhungel 0.73% 0.73%
Ambika Prasad Paudel 0.73% 0.73%
Purushutam Lal Sanghai 0.73% 0.73%
Subash Chandra Sanghai 0.71% 0.71%
Birendra Kumar Sanghai 0.70% 0.70%
Svivangi Agrawal 0.66% 0.66%
Ram Chandra Sanghai 0.57% 0.57%
SG Securities Pvt. Ltd. 0.55% -

Siddhartha Bank Limited 0.54% -

Sanjeev Kumar Dahal 0.52% 0.52%
Sangita KC 0.51% 0.51%
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4.27 Reserve
The reserves including regulatory and other reserve excluding retained earnings are as following:

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Regulatory / Statutory Reserves
General reserve 121,816,492 93,870,982
Exchange fluctuation reserve - -

Free Reserve

Deferred Tax Reserve 481,698 481,698
Customers Protection Fund 3,016,351 2,148,861
Institution Development Fund 3,359,506 2,729,911

Available for Sale Investment Reserve

Total 128,674,047 99,231,452
*Deferred Tax reserve (Rs. 481,698) has not been adjusted as per the instruction of Nepal Rastra Bank.

4.27.1 General Reserve
There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve
until the reserve is twice the paid of share capital. The reserve is the accumulation of
setting aside profits over the years.
Here, general reserve of Rs. 27,945,510 has been allocated, which is 20% of Net Profit
after tax as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

4.27.2 Client Protection Fund

Client Protection Fund is created amounting 1% of Net Profit as per Nepal Rastra Bank’s
Directive. Utilization of amount from last year has been transferred to Retained Earning.
As per NRB Directive for Microfinance 2076-77, Microfinance shall utilize minimum 50%
of previous year allocated amount. However, Microfinance has utilised only 40% of
previous allocated amount, Rs. 1,324,716.

Here, Client Protection Fund of Rs. 1,397,275 has been allocated, which is 1% of Net
Profit after tax as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

4.27.3 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
Corporate Social Responsibility Fund is created amounting 1% of Net Profit as per
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directive. Utilization of amount from last year has been transferred
to Retained Earning.
Here, Corporate Social Responsibility Fund of Rs. 1,397,275 has been allocated, which
is 1% of Net Profit after tax as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

4.27.4 Other reserve
Deferred Tax Reserve is created as per Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directive in the regulatory
purpose financial statement has been continued as deferred tax Reserve.

4.27.5 Movement in reserves
Movements in the reserves are given in detail in Statement of Changes in Equity.
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4.28 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

The Micro Finance seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, but may be subject to
regulatory actions and investigations, the outcome of which are generally difficult to predict and can
be material to the Micro Finance. The Micro Finance considers none of these claims as material.

Where appropriate, the Micro Finance recognizes a provision for liabilities when it is probable that
an outflow of economic resources embodying economic benefits will be required and for which a
reliable estimate can be made of the obligation(s). As on Ashad End 2077 there is no Contingent
Liabilities.

Particulars Ashadh end 2077 | Ashadh end 2076
Guarantees - -

Irrevocable Loan Commitments - -

Contingent Liabilities on Taxes - -

Other Contingent Liabilities including Acceptance - -

Unpaid Shares - -

Claim on Guarantee received for Payment - -

Claim against the Micro Finance but not
accepted by it

Grand Total - -
4.29 Interest Income
(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Cash and cash equivalent 53,181,011 51,684,093

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placement with bank and Financial institutions - -

Treasury Bills - -
Govt Bond/NRB Bonds - -
Loans and Advances to Banks & FI 720,080,220 674,832,960
Debt investments - -

Loans and Advances to Customers - -

Investment securities - -
Interest Differential - 864,916
Other - -

Total 773,261,231 727,381,969
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(Amount in NPR)

Particulars

2076-77

2075-76

Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowing

524,823,613

465,542,696

Debt Securities in issued

Subordinated liabilities

Others

Total

524,823,613

465,542,696

4.31 Fees and commission income

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars

2076-77

2075-76

Service Fees

Renewal Fees

E.Pra. Commission

Others

515,436

1,110,390

Total

515,436

1,110,390

4.32 Fees and Commission expense
NIL

4.33 Net Trading Income
NIL

4.34 Other Operating Income

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars

2076-77

2075-76

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities

Loans and receivables

Dividend Income

Gain on disposal of Property and Equipment

275,740

Gain/loss on sale of investment properties

Other non-operating income

Total

275,740

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Impairment Allowance 357,656 13,847,777
Total 357,656 13,847,777
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4.36 Personnel Expenses

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Salaries 9,708,398 9,034,450
Allowances 6,087,483 4,265,120
Training Expenses 1,166,577 1,759,039
Uniform Expenses 174,000 164,000
Medical Expenses - -
Insurance Expenses 215,797 196,540
Defined Contribution Plan - Expenses (PF) 913,640 867,205
Defined Contribution Plan - Expenses (Gratuity After
Bhardra 19, 2074) i ( ’ 585,496 602,431
Defined Benefit Plan - Expenses ( Gratuity) - 275,735
Long Term Benefit Expenses (Leave) 1,807,862 1,284,952
Finance expense under NFRS - 553,757
Staff Incentives - -
Others (Overtime) 85,000 90,000
Subtotal 20,744,251 19,093,229
Provision for Staff Bonus 22,132,509 20,997,293

Total 42,876,760 40,090,522

*Provision for staff bonus is a mandatory under the requirement of the Bonus Act and Nepal Rastra Bank

Directive and same has been complied.

Here, Provision for staff bonus is allocated 10% of Net Profit before such bonus. For the purpose
of calculation of such bonus, profit as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose has

been considered i.e NPR 2,21,32,509.

4.37 Other Operating Expenses

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Premises Cost 2,049,119 2,107,252
Other Expenses 8,302,810 9,307,263
Total 10,351,929 11,414,515

4.37.1 Premises Cost

Lease rental for premises are charged on straight line basis in accordance to the lease.

All other expenses are recognised when they become due for payment.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Operating lease expenses (building and premises rent) 1,791,486 1,791,486
Light Electricity Water 243,633 293,766
Repair and maintenance — building - -
Security Expenses 14,000 22,000
Total 2,049,119 2,107,252
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All the general administrative expenses are recognised when the Micro Finance is
obligated to make the payments, either legally or constructively.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Repair and Maintenance
Vehicle 168,684 271,064
Office equipments and furniture 28,764 65,373
Others 129,986 90,213
Insurance 127,005 106,068
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 327,833 327,392
Travelling Allowances and Expenses 759,342 941,787
Stationery and Printing 156,275 265,892
Periodicals and Books 28,135 35,205
Advertisement 241,671 366,160
Legal Expenses - -
Donations - -
Expenses Relating to Board of Directors
Meeting Allowance 610,000 495,150
Others Expenses 59,753 415,213
General Meeting Expenses 543,033 482,671
Expenses Relating to Audit
Audit Fees 339,000 339,000
Other Expenses 25,050 6,675
Technology Support Cost (Technical Services Fees ) - -
Share Registration Expenses 556,178 -
Commission and Discount - -
Others
Loan Management and Deed Expenses - -
Credit information and Collection Expenses 465,600 540,900
Fuel 370,253 477,265
Other Bank Fees 25,611 41,628
Office Lunch expenses 265,097 328,051
Local Transportation Expenses 88,350 79,040
Membership fees 326,000 477,980
Client Protection Fund Expenses 529,785 710,235
Vehicle Tax 175,940 129,615
IT and Share Registrar Expenses 510,819 457,521
Wages 332,372 560,063
Internal Audit Fee 226,000 245,455
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 767,680 300,000
System Audit Fee & Expenses 24,516 235,407
Others 94,078 516,240
Total 8,302,810 9,307,263
4.38 Depreciation & Amortization
(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Depreciation of PPE (refer note 4.13) 1,910,551 1,643,854
Amortization of expenses (refer note 4.14) 112,361 112,361
Total 2,022,912 1,756,215

QY




W

th
T annuae reporr
——— |1 |

. First
Microfinance

vaR! aiftie ufdager-2000

4.39 Non-Operating Income

The microfinance non-operating income are derived from gain on disposal of Property & Equipment.

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Gain on Sale of Disposal of Property & Equipment 275,740 -
Total 275,740 -

4.40 Non-Operating Expense

4.41

NIL

Income tax expense

The Micro Finance's current tax liabilities are calculated using the Income Tax Act, 2058 as applicable
in Nepal. Current tax payable (or recoverable) is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the profit reported in the statement or profit or loss, because some item of income
or expense are taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible.

4.41.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Net Profit as per SOPL 136,646,742 130,753,772
NFRS Adjustments 3,080,806 1,717,870
Regulatory NPAT 139,727,548 132,471,642
Provision for Tax 59,894,503 57,322,246
Deferred Tax 429,467 (818,249)
Bonus Provision 22,132,509 20,997,293
Net profit before Staff Bonus & Tax 221,325,093 209,972,932
Bonus 10% 2,2,132,509 20,997,293
Profit Before Tax After Bonus 199,192,584 188,975,639
Income Tax Related Adjustments 455,758 2,098,516
Taxable Income 199,648,342 191,074,155
Provision for Income Tax (@ 30%) 59,894,503 57,322,247

4.41.2 Tax Settlement Status

The Microfinance has made provision as per self-assessment return and amount of

advance tax is as under.

(Amount in NPR)

Income Years | Provision for Tax (as per Advance Tax Paid Advance Tax Net of
self-assessment) Provision
2076/77 59,894,503 61,599,171 (1,704,668)
2075/76 57,322,246 57,421,417 (99,171)
2074/75 43,949,027 43,300,983 648,044
2073/74 34,714,517 34,588,576 (125,940)
2072/73 23,417,110 23,519,889 102,779
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES
Valuation hierarchy

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified
into three levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair
values. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period
may result in a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Micro Finance
recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy when there is a significant change
in either its principal market or the level of observability of the inputs to the valuation techniques as
at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

Hierarchy of Fair Value Measurement
(Amount in NPR)

31-3-2077 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Corporate Securities - - - -
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd. - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total - - 2,000,000 2,000,000

The following table presents the Micro Finance’s financial instruments, which are held at the fair
value. The table also presents the valuation techniques to be used to measure the fair value of
those financial instruments when the company comes into operation.

Instrument Principal valuation Significant unobservable
technique inputs
Corporate Securities Internal oricina model EV/EBITDA multiples, P/E
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd. P 9 multiples, Liquidity discount

The following section describes the significant unobservable inputs identified in the valuation
technique table.

Proxy pricing

Proxy pricing refers to the method where valuation is done by calculating an implied yield from
the price of a similar comparable observable instrument. The comparable instrument for a private
equity investment is a comparable listed company. The comparable instrument in case of bonds is
a similar comparable but observable bond.

This may involve adjusting the yield to derive a value for the unobservable instrument.
EV/EBITDA ratio multiples

This is the ratio of EV to EBITDA, EV is the aggregate market capitalization and debt minus
the cash and cash equivalents. An increase in EV/EBITDA multiple in isolation will result in a
favourable movement in the fair value of the unlisted firm.

P/E and price to book (P/B) multiples

P/E multiple is the ratio of the market capitalization to the net income after tax. P/B multiple is the
ratio of the market capitalization to the book value. The multiples are determined from multiples of
listed comparable, which are observable. An increase in P/E multiple or P/B multiple will resultin a
favourable movement in the fair value of the unlisted firm.
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Yield

Yield is the interest rate that is used to discount the future cash flows in a discounted cash flow
model.

Liquidity discounts in the valuation of unlisted investments

A liquidity discount is primarily applied to the valuation of unlisted investments to reflect the fact
that these stocks are not actively traded. An increase in liquidity discount in isolation will result in
favourable movement in the fair value of the unlisted firm.

Fair value of Financial Instruments held at Amortised Costs on recurring basis

The following table shows the carrying amounts and incorporates the Micro Finance’s estimate of
fair value of those financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Micro Finance’s statement of
financial position at fair value. These fair values may be different from the actual amount that will be
received or paid on the settlement or maturity of the financial instruments. For certain instruments,
fair value may be determined using assumptions for which no observable prices are available.

5.2.1. Fair Value of Financial Assets held at amortized cost
(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2077 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loan and advances to Customers 5,562,621,922
Other Financial Assets 5,057,480
Total 5,567,679,402
(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loan and advances to Customers 5,547,208,116
Other Financial Assets 4,290,482
Total 5,551,498,598
5.2.2. Fair Value of Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost
(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2077 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Borrowings 5,234,999,983
Other Financial Liabilities 43,507,910
Total 5,278,507,893
(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Borrowings 5,144,133,847
Other Financial Liabilities 60,782,646
Total 5,204,916,493
5.2.3. Fair value Level 3 disclosures

The following sets out the basis of establishing fair values of amortised cost financial
instruments. These are not generally traded and there is a significant level of
management judgement involved in calculating the fair values.

Cash and balances at central banks
The fair value of cash and balances at central banks is their carrying amounts.

Loans and advances to banks
For loans and advances to banks, the estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing
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5.3

5.4

deposits is based on discounted cash flows using the prevailing money market rates for
debts with a similar credit risk and remaining maturity. These are generally the carrying
amount of these assets.

Loans and advances to customers

The loans and advances to Customer portfolio is well diversified by industry. The fair
value of loans and advances to customers with a residual maturity of less than one year
generally approximates the carrying value, subject to any significant movement in credit
spreads. The estimated fair value of loans and advances with a residual maturity of more
than one year represents the discounted amount of future cash flows expected to be
received, including assumptions relating to prepayment rates and, where appropriate,
credit spreads. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine
fair value.

The rates for discounting for the purpose of fair value measurement closely
approximates the effective interest rate inherent in the instruments therefore the
carrying value represents the fair value. The staff home loans facility is also classified
as loans and advances to customers and the fair value of such loans is also determined
using effective interest rate method. The interest rate considered in such loans are the
prevailing market rate the cost of which is charged as staff cost of Micro Finance.

Others assets

These assets are generally with the residual maturity of less than one year. The impact
of discounted cash flows of those assets more maturity period of more than one year
is insignificant. Therefore the fair value of other assets generally approximates the
carrying amount.

Deposits and borrowings

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is the amount repayable on
demand. The estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits and other borrowings
without quoted market prices is based on discounting cash flows using the prevailing
market rates for debts with a similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities have been classified in accordance with the requirements of
NFRS. These have been presented consistently, however, the fixed deposit with banks and
financial institutions have been reclassified with under heading Placement with Banks and
Financial Institutions.

Risk Assessment and Management
Risk Management

The Microfinance is exposed to various types of risks including credit, market, liquidity, operational,
legal, compliance and reputation risks. The objective of the risk management framework at the
Microfinance is to ensure that various risks are understood, measured and monitored and that the
policies and procedures established to address these risks are strictly adhered to.

The Board of Directors has oversight on all the risks assumed by the Microfinance. The board
level sub-committee (Risk Management Committee) has been established to facilitate focused
oversight of various risks. The committee reviews the risk management policies, the Microfinance’s
compliance with NRB Directives.

The Micro Finance’s Management Committee comprised during reporting period as following:

S.N. Members of Management Committee Designation
1 Mr. Bhesh Raj Panthi — CEO Coordinator
2 Mr. Dana Raj Pant - Company Secretary/Acting DCEO Member
3 Mr. Gyanendra Wagle - Credit Head Member
4 Mr. Baburam Neupane - Head of Business Support Member
5 Mr. Bijay Sharma - Head of Finance Management Dept Member
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Risk Governance

Trained supervisors and analysts in the First Microfinance examine and monitor the performance
and activities of partner MFIs. In addition to monitoring the financial condition of the MFls,
supervisors also review compliance with terms and conditions of loan agreements and regulations
and seek corrective action as and when necessary.

Risk Management Department conducts periodical financial surveillance and monitoring and
provides pre-examination analysis and other analytical support to onsite supervisors and
management.

Through its risk management framework, the Micro Finance seeks to efficiently manage credit,
market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Micro Finance’s commercial activities as
well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any
business undertaking. As part of this framework, the Micro Finance uses a set of principles that
describe its risk management culture. The principles of risk management followed by the Micro
Finance include:

e Prepare quarterly report of financial position and performance for individual MFls and to
conclude the trends and indicators on these.

Analyze the financial position and performance indicators on quarterly basis.

Provide all statistical data required for onsite supervision.

Provide Offsite Warning Signal (OWS) by SCOR rating table and other reports for each MFI.
Taking risk with appropriate authorities and where there is appropriate infrastructure and
resource to manage them.

Anticipating future risks and ensuring awareness of all risks.

Efficient and effective risk management and control to gain competitive advantage.

In order to enhance governance/oversight and to enable earlier detection and mitigation of critical
risks, Supervision System (SS) has been implemented in First Microfinance The Supervision
System provides a set of guiding principles for analysing and monitoring the financial position and
performance of each Individual partner to more proactively identify, assess and mitigate potential
control failures.

Following are the major risk faced by the microfinance and the mitigating measures followed
by it:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the
Micro Finance in accordance with agreed terms.

The Microfinance has Credit Policy Guidelines (CPG) that, inter alia, consist of areas of lending,
eligibility of borrower, loan application format and requirement, necessary documents for processing
loans, risk assessment areas, loan approval authority and other general credit principles. The CPG
has been formulated by keeping in mind the prudential norms given by NRB.

A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and analysis
of all the relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and proper evaluation of the credit risk
of the prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan applications normally
included prospects of the business, management of the firm/company, financial analysis- income
statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, key financial indicators, key risk and mitigates.
Further, inspection and supervision are also conducted before approval of the loan for pre-analysis
and after the disbursement of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

Operation Risk

Operational risk is the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems
or policies, employee errors, system failures, fraud or other criminal activity. Any event that disrupts
business processes.

Operational risk exposures are managed through a consistent set of management processes that
drive risk identification, assessment, control and monitoring. For the control of operational risk of
institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws which guides the day to day
operation.
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Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for maintaining
an effective control environment across the organization. Risk control owners have responsibility
for the control of operational risk arising from the management of the following activities: External
Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety &
Security, Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information Security, Processing Failure,
and Model. Operational risks can arise from all business lines and from all activities carried out
by the Micro Finance. Operational Risk management approach seeks to ensure management of
operational risk by maintaining a complete process universe defined for all business segments,
products and functions processes.

Corporate Governance:
NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with.
Market Risk

Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered under
Market Risk Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of earnings or economic value due
to adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. Institution exposure to market risk arises
principally from institutional driven transactions.

In line with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, the Micro Finance focuses on risk
management in addition to that Interest rate risk is assessed at a regular interval to strengthen
market risk management. The market risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market risk
limits set by ALCO.

Investment Risk

Currently the Microfinance has not made any investment for trading purpose. The investment in
Nepal Fin Soft has been held as available for sale.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Micro Finance either does not have sufficient liquid financial
resources available to meet all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these financial
resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk is managed by ALCO.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue;
increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder value.

Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting
the institution’s reputation locally and has the responsibility to ensure that the Micro Finance does
not undertake any activities that may cause material damage to the reputation of institution.

Employee Benefit Risk

Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the Micro
Finance’s defined benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes.

The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of retirement of the
individual staff and number of years’ service with the Micro Finance. The leave can be accumulated
for maximum period of 60 days for total period served by individual staff. The gross obligation for
leave encashment is calculated considering the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days
for leave encashment.

The Microfinance has also carried out actuarial valuation in order to truly determine the employee
Benefit cost and liability

Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a
manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and
procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.
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5.5

5.6

5.7

The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the
Board, its Committees, Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Micro Finance’s system of internal control during the year and provided
feedback to the Board as appropriate. First Microfinance has outsourced the Internal Audit function
to maintain independency on the internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit monitors
compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the
Company through its program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on
the areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit
reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to
the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

Foreign Currencies

The Microfinance is not authorized to deal in foreign currency. Further it does not have any foreign
currency denominated Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses.

Dividends
Accounting Policy

Distribution of profit to the shareholders is done by way of payment of cash dividend and /or issue of
bonus shares. Applicable withholding taxes are deducted from such distribution. The distributions
are proposed by the board and approved by the general meeting. The proposed dividend and
bonus shares are not adjusted in the books instead disclosed by way of notes

Explanatory Notes

5.6.1 Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)
The Board has recommended 9.50% as bonus share and 4.18% as cash dividend for the
reported year, 2076-77 based on paid up capital of Ashadh End 2077. This proposal of
the Board of Directors is subject to the ratification by the Annual General meeting of the
Shareholders. The Microfinance has declared bonus share and cash dividend amounting
Rs. 109,575,137 and which will be distributed from Retained Earning as seen on the
regulatory financial statement.

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Cash Dividends declared 33,504,683 6,123,523
Bonus Shares 76,070,454 116,346,946
Total 109,575,137 122,470,469

5.6.2 Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividends are as follows:
(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Not collected for more than 5 years - -
Not collected less than 5 years 5,165,869 4,329,561
Total 5,165,869 4,329,561

Segment Analysis

5.7.1 General information
The Micro Finance is organized for management and reporting purposes into segments
such as: ‘D’ class Microfinance and Co-operative. The products offered to these client
segments are summarized under ‘Income by product’ below. The focus is on broadening
and deepening the relationship with clients, rather than maximizing a particular product line.
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5.8

5.9

Segment Description: Micro Finance has disclosed its operations under the following segments:

Segment Definition Activity

‘D’ Class Microfinance makes loans and advance to such microfinance
who has obtained licensed from Nepal Rastra Bank as ‘D’ Class Micro
finance Institutions and those ‘D’ class micro finance institutions further
makes loans and advances to deprived people.

‘D’ class Microfinance

Co-operative makes loans and advances to such Community
base co-operative which has been registered at division co-operative
office and operated as per cooperative act. Further Co-operatives
makes loans and advances to deprived local community.

Co-operative

Segment revenues are aggregate of net income reported by the Micro Finance under various
heads. Segment results are determined after considering the following inter-unit notional charges/
recoveries.

i. Interest Cost: Interest costs are allocated to ‘D’ Class Microfinance and Co-operative on the
basis of Segment Revenue.

ii. Support costs (costs pertaining to Finance, HR, Corporate Real Estate Services, Legal
& Compliance, Corporate Affairs, Information Technology etc.) are allocated to ‘D’ Class
Microfinance and Co-operative on the basis of Segment Revenue. Depreciation and
Amortisation cost are excluded on support cost.

iii. Assets: Segment assets consists of gross value of loan which have been determined based on
actual loan outstanding for respective segment heads.

iv. Liabilities: Segment liabilities consists of borrowings made by the Micro Finance. The borrowings
are allocated based on actual loan outstanding.

v. Depreciation: Depreciation and amortization costs are allocated based on loan outstanding.

The segmental information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities is presented below:

Particulars ,Dl C'I ass Co-operative Others Total
Microfinance
Net Segment Revenue 532,859,363 187,220,857 53,181,011 773,261,231
Net Segment Results 133,424,487 46,878,874 13,316,176 193,619,537
Provision for Tax 44,321,932 15,572,571 - 59,894,503
Deferred Tax 2,336,577 820,959 - 3,157,536
Net Profit 96,600,241 33,940,625 9,641,003 140,181,869
Segment Assets 4,141,171,126 | 1,457,562,485 5,598,733,611
Segment Liabilities 3,873,899,987 | 1,361,099,996 -1 5,234,999,983
Depreciation & Amortization 1,496,955 525,957 - 2,022,912

Share options and share based payment

There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.

Related Party Disclosure

Accounting Policy

The Micro Finance identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

i) Shareholders having shareholding of 4% or more during the year.

ii) Subsidiary of Major Shareholder.
iii) Directors of the Micro Finance and their close family members, if any

iv) Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members, if any

Explanatory Notes

The related parties of the Microfinance which meets the definition of related parties as defined in
“NAS 24 Related Parties Disclosure” are as follows:
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5.9.1 Shareholder having shareholding 4% of more during the year.

Shareholder Category %3;;:‘5?;:‘9 %3;f?;1§?c|7iflg
Prabhu Bank Limited 15.00% 15.00%
Global IME Bank 14.73% 15.00%
Kumari Bank Limited 4.05% 4.05%

5.9.2 Transaction with Subsidiary of Significant Shareholders
Global IME Capital the subsidiary of Global IME Bank is identified as related party. Related
parties with whom transactions have occurred during the reporting year.
(Amount in NPR)

Transaction during the | Global IME Prabhu Kumari ICFC Global IME
year Bank Bank Bank Finance Capital
Borrowings 904,501,513 | 84,987,625 282,607,062 | 120,000,000 -
Interest on Borrowings 67,208,932 | 14,721,505| 20,582,795| 13,457,938 -
Other transactions 50,000 - - - 150,000

5.9.3 Transaction with and payments to Directors of Microfinance
The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (Director’s only)
were as follows:
(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Director’s Fee 610,000 495,150
Other Expenses 59,753 415,213
Total 669,753 910,363

Details of the board of directors and their composition, and changes if any during the period,
are disclosed in the director’s report.
There have been no payment or transactions with the close family member of the directors.

5.9.4 Transaction with and payment to Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including
any director. The key management of the Microfinance includes members of its Board of
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher-level employee of the organization. The
name of the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office
during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel Post
Bhesh Raj Panthi CEO
Dana Raj Pant Acting Deputy CEO
Other Management Personnel (3 staffs) Management

Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and
allowances are provided to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management
Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the
contract entered by the Microfinance with him whereas compensation paid to other member
of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management time to
time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle
facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan termination benefits are also provided to KMP.
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The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors
were as follows:

Name Position Remuneration
Bhesh Raj Panthi CEO 5,820,664
Dana Raj Pant Acting Deputy CEO 4,738,290
Other Management Personnel (3 staffs) Management 8,149,942

Total 18,708,897

Benefits are paid to CEO as per the Contract. Vehicle facility are provided to the present CEO. There
have been no payment or transactions with the close family member of the key managerial personnel.

5.10 Events after reporting date
Accounting Policy

Micro Finance monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting
and/ or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted
in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are discloses in the
notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

Explanatory Notes

There are no material events that has occurred subsequent to 31st Ashad 2077 till the signing of
this financial statement on 10th Bhadra, 2077.

5.11 Merger and acquisition

No any Merger and acquisition has taken in the years presented.

6. CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
6.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Accounting Policy

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, on demand
and overnight balances with central banks (unless restricted) and balances with Microfinances with
less than three months maturity.

Loans and advances to Micro Finances, treasury bills and government bonds are not
considered for cash and cash equivalent as these are investments made by the Micro Finance.

Explanatory Notes
(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Cash at vault - -
Balances with Central bank 28,549,434 26,549,434
Balances with banks 39,963,049 67,285,243
Money at Call and Short Notices 315,590,694 100,801,910
Total 384,103,177 194,636,587

7. INTERIM REPORTS

Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements reported had been reported in accordance
with the regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published.
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